
FINAL APPLICATION 
City of Denton Historic Landmark 

923 W. Oak Street 

 

 

DCAD Legal description: A0996a E. Puchalski, Tr 17, .209 Acres, Old Dcad Tr 180a 

Present use: Residence; NR3 Zoning  
 

Name of owner(s): Lisa Adams 

 

                Address: 923 W. Oak, Denton, TX 76201 

 

     Phone number: (832) 752-2425 

 

                 e-Mail: lisa.adams@couturehomes.net 

 

 

 

  

Signature of Owner 

 

mailto:lisa.adams@couturehomes.net


Original Construction Details: 

  
1) Date(s) of construction: Uncertain, moved to 923 W. Oak in 1949 

 

 

2) Original owner’s name: Callie Ratliff and Nettie Shultz, 1949 

 

3) Detailed history of this address and the people associated with the home (Attachment A)  

 

4) Documentation to verify this history (Attachment B) 

 

5) Architect (if known):  n/a 

 

6) Builder (if known):  n/a 

 

7) Architectural Style:  Craftsman Bungalow Style 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment A: 

Narrative on the history, owners and knowledge of this structure 
 

The Craftsman style bungalow home at 923 W. Oak has an interesting history. 

Originally, a home was built on the lot referenced as 921 W. Oak about 1913 by Arthur (A. C.) and Willie 

Rayzor.  They built their home next door to Arthur’s parents, Eva and J. Newton Rayzor at 1003 W. Oak 

also built in 1913.  This map view of the south side of West Oak is from the Sanborn 1921 map and is 

identical to the 1917 Sanborn map of the same section of West Oak. 

 

 

A.C. and Willie Rayzor sold their home to P.E. McDonald in 1917 (warranty deed is included below). 

McDonald was the superintendent of Honey Grove schools and then joined the faculty of the North 

Texas Normal College by 1914 or “Teacher’s College” (presently UNT).   McDonald lived in the home 

from 1917 to 1945 while he was the Register of the Normal College. 

McDonald sold his home to F.M. Darnall, an English professor at present day UNT in 1945.  Dr. Darnall 

joined the English faculty in 1932.  He served in the Red Cross during WWI and then completed his 

studies at the University of Tennessee and then at the University of Leipzig in Germany. 

In 1945, Erie and F.M. Darnall realized the need to develop housing for those leaving their military 

service at the end of WWII.  They created a small housing addition just south of present day UNT named 

the Darnall Addition with 20 lots.  Located between Avenue A and B with McCormick Street in between, 

the addition in now between Margie and Underwood Streets.  Most of the homes were built in early 

1946 before his death in June 1946; however, his wife continued to build home in the addition until 

about 1950. 

 



 

Darnall Addition of 20 homes – December 1945 

Mill Street, north boundary, is now called Margie Street 

 

When F.M. Darnall died in June 1946, they were living at 1608 W. Oak.  His wife, Erie Darnall moved the 

original Rayzor home in September 1946 from 921 W. Oak to 805 Ector Street. 

Callie Ratliff and Nettie Shultz, living at 1011 W. Oak, purchase 503 W. Hickory from Linwood Robinson 

on October 16, 1948 with the stipulation that it would be moved in 30 days.  Linwood Robinson and his 

wife, Leta Robinson, had purchase 503 W. Hickory from Alma and H.L. Gentle in June 1948.  To prepare 

for their new florist shop, Linwood Robinson Florist, the house was sold to be moved. 

On October 29, 1948, Callie Ratliff and Nettie Shultz purchase the “921” lot from Erie Darnall.  They 

divided the original lot into two lots and moved the house from 503 W. Hickory to this new location with 

this house resuming the number of 921 W. Oak.  The record is silent on the exact details of the second 

home on this lot, 923 W. Oak, but notes are made in the City Tax Records that the house was 

reconditioned  in 1949 with a building permit granted for a remodel of the house on August 10, 1949 for 

the amount of $2,500.  The same notes of reconditioning are made in the City Tax Records for 921 W. 

Oak also in 1949.  The assumption is that the house at 923 W. Oak was also moved to this location for no 

liens or construction permits are located or granted by the City of Denton for this address. 

Callie Ratliff and Nettie Shultz created two rent houses at 921 and 923 W. Oak.  The earliest mention of 

a resident is Mr. and Mrs. Frank Gafford living at 923 W. Oak in 1951.  Ratliff and Shultz sell 923 W. Oak 

in 1958 to Elisabeth and Joseph Doblin and the east side of the original lot of 921 W Oak side in 1959.  



Attachment B: 

Documentation to verify importance (support for Attachment A) 
 

Dr. Darnall Obituary, June 1946 

1 

 

921 W Oak house to be moved off lot – September 1946 

2 

 

 

 

                                                           
1 F.M. Darnall Obit, Denton Record-Chronicle, June 7 1946. 
2 921 W Oak house to be moved off lot, Denton Record-Chronicle, Sun, Sep 8, 1946 · Page 7. 



Herrold Headly, NTSU (UNT) Director of Choirs, at 923 W. Oak - 1955 

3 

 

Joseph Doblin, second owner of 923 W. Oak - 1959 

4 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
3 Mrs. Herrold Headley, Denton Record-Chronicle, Sun, Oct 16, 1955 · Page 17. 
4 Joseph Doblin at 923 W. Oak, Denton Record-Chronicle, Fri, Jun 12, 1959 · Page 1 



Attachment C 

List the ownership title from original to present owner.  

Attach copies of each instrument where possible. 
 

List of owners:  

 Original builders and owners:  

o Willie & A.C. Rayzor  

o c1913 – 1917  

 

 Second owners: 

o Eva Belle & P.E. McDonald 

o 1917 – 1945 

 

 Third owners: 

o Erie M. & F.M. Darnall 

o 1945 – 1948  

909/27/1945 Warranty Deed    McDonald, P.E. & Eva Belle TO Darnall, F.M. & Erie M.      317-243 

HOUSE MOVED to 805 Ector Street in 1946  

Lot at 921 W. Oak is empty… 

 First owners: 

o Callie Ratliff & Nette Schultz 

o 1948 – 1958 

10/29/1948 Warranty Deed  Darnall, Erie M.  TO Ratliff, Callie R. & Schultz, Nette       347-321 

 

 Second owners: 

o Elizabeth & Joseph Doblin 

o 1958 – 1967  

05/13/1958 Warranty Deed  Ratliff, Callie & Schultz, Nette TO Doblin, Joseph & Elizabeth 

437-227 

 

 Third Owner: 

o Winifred & Donald Boots 

o 1967 – 1972  

07/24/1967 Warranty Deed   Doblin, Joseph & Elizabeth TO Boots, Donald & Winifred     553-558 

 Fourth Owner: 

o Nancy & Tom Myers 

o 1972 – 1975 

               07/13/1972 Warranty Deed   Boots, Donald A. & Winifred J. TO Myers, Tom & Nancy     650-568 



 Fifth Owner: 

o William Gumm 

o 1975 – 1977 

               08/05/1975  Warranty Deed       Myers, Tom & Nancy TO Gumm, William B.            753-669 

 Sixth Owner: 

o Patrice & Cengiz Capan 

o 1977 – 1983   

 05/05/1977  Warranty Deed       Gumm, William B. TO Capan, Cengiz H & Patrice J.     833-943 

 Seventh Owner: 

o Maryan & Richard Ross; Cynthia and Kim Ross (daughters) 

o 1983 – 1987                 

06/22/1983  Warranty Deed     Capan, Cengiz H & Patrice J. TO Jones, Frank  & McNeil, Joe      

1228-896  

07/25/1983  Warranty Deed     Jones, Frank L & McNeil, Joe TO Ross, Richard & Maryan; Ross, 

Kim C. & Ross, Cynthia Kay  1238 -0121 

 Eighth Owner: 

o Cynthia (Ross) Greene 

o 1987 – 1997               

09/18/1987  Warranty Deed    Ross, Richard E. & Maryan TO Greene (formerly Ross), Cynthia 

Kay  2243 -257  

 Ninth Owner: 

o Marian & Ross Perry 

o 1997 – 2004                 

04/2/1997  Wd With Vendors Lien  Greene, Cynthia Kay TO Perry, Marian & Ross Perry 

 97-0021132 

 Tenth Owner: 

o Vicky & John Borck 

o 2004 – 2014               

08/11/2004  Wd With Vendors Lien  Perry, Marian & Ross Perry TO Borck, John W & Vicky K 

 10/12/2006  Special Wd  Borck, John W & Vicky K TO Borck Family Lp  2007-25542 4-

106530 

 Eleventh Owner: 

o Lisa Adams 

o 2014 – Present               

12/9/2014  General Wd  Borck Family Lp TO Adams, Lisa R  2014-127530 

 



921 W Oak Warranty Deed – February 5, 1917 

Arthur (A.C.) & Willie Pauline Rayzor sell to P.E. McDonald 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



503 W. Hickory sale and move in 30 days – October 29, 1948 

Linwood Roberson to Callie Ratliff and Nette Shultz 

 

 



Attachment D 

Surveys 
 

Attach subdivision map or Old Town Plat; attach copies of old surveys, an old on-the-ground 

survey, or a current on-the-ground survey locating all improvements, easements, access to 

public roads, public improvements, encroachments and protrusions.  

 

 

Sanborn Insurance Map - 1921 

921 W. Oak. 

Moved in 1946 and the lot at 921 divided into two lots: 921 and 923 W. Oak 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment E 

Exterior Photographs 
 

Attach four (4) photographs of the historical marker site, one from each direction (North, 

South, East, and West) with label per photo.  

 

North View 

 
 

South View 

                                



East View 

 

 

West View 

 

 



Attachment F 

Criteria for Historical Landmark Designation 
 

The property meets one or more of the following Historic Landmark designations:  

 

__X__1. Character, interest or value as part of the development, heritage, cultural or a 

Historic District of the City of Denton, State of Texas or the United States.  

 

_____2. Recognition as a recorded Texas historic landmark, a national landmark, or entered 

into the National Register of Historic Places.  

 

__X__3. Embodiment of distinguishing characteristics of an architectural type or specimen.  

 

_____4. Identification as the work of an architect or master builder whose individual work 

has influenced the development of the city.  

 

__X__5. Embodiment of elements of architectural design, detail, materials or craftsmanship, 

which represent a significant architectural innovation.  

 

__X__6. Relationship to other distinctive buildings, sites or areas which are eligible for 

preservation according to a plan based on architectural, historic or cultural motif.  

 

_____7. Portrayal of the environment of a group of people in an area of history characterized 

by a distinctive architectural style.  

 

_____8. Archaeological value in that it has produced or can be expected to produce data 

affecting theories of historic or prehistoric interest.  

 

_____9. Exemplification of the cultural, economic, social, ethnic or historical heritage of the 

City, State or United States.  

 

_____10. Location as the site of a significant historic event.  

 

__X__11. Identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the culture 

and development of the City, State, or United States.  

 

__X__12. A building or structure that because of its location has become of value to a 

neighborhood, community area or the city.  

 

_____13. Value as an aspect of community sentiment or public pride.  
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